

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND THIRTY-SECOND LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 4, 2024 to March 21, 2025

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
March 25, 2025 to June 25, 2025

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NONEMERGENCY LAWS IS
JUNE 20, 2025

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
NONEMERGENCY LAWS IS
SEPTEMBER 24, 2025

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Augusta, Maine
2025

CHAPTER 315
H.P. 662 - L.D. 1033

**An Act to Regulate Alcoholic
Beverage Competitions**

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 28-A MRSA §1057 is enacted to read:

§1057. Liquor judging competition event permit

1. Definitions. As used in this section, unless the context otherwise indicates, the following terms have the following meanings.

A. "Homemade liquor" means malt liquor, wine or hard cider made by a person's own efforts in the person's home for personal use that is not offered for sale and that does not contain added spirits.

B. "Liquor judging competition event" means an event where judges evaluate entries of malt liquor, wine, hard cider or spirits, except for homemade spirits, based on a set of criteria to determine a winner of the competition.

2. Liquor judging competition event permit; eligibility. One or more certificate of approval holders that are manufacturers may apply for a permit to host a liquor judging competition event subject to the conditions prescribed by this section.

3. Liquor judging competition event participants. A certificate of approval holder or a person who produces homemade liquor that does not contain spirits may participate in the liquor judging competition event in the same manner and subject to the same conditions as a person permitted under this section.

4. Application. An applicant for a liquor judging competition event permit described in subsection 2 shall submit a written application to the bureau no later than 15 calendar days prior to the date of the liquor judging competition event. The application must include the following:

A. The name and address of each liquor judging competition event participant;

B. The title and purpose of the liquor judging competition event;

C. The date, time and duration of the liquor judging competition event;

D. The address and location of the liquor judging competition event, including a description of the liquor judging competition event; and

E. The address and the location of areas where liquor for the liquor judging competition event may be stored by the applicant for the liquor judging competition event permit.

5. Fee. The permit fee for a liquor judging liquor judging competition event permit under subsection 2 is \$20.

6. Ruling on application. Upon receipt of an application under subsection 4, the bureau shall immediately approve or deny the application. The bureau shall advise applicants that the permit for a liquor judging competition event under subsection 2 may be suspended or revoked pursuant to chapter 33.

7. Up to 10 permitted liquor judging competition events per year; one liquor judging competition event per permit. A person eligible for a permit under subsection 2 may obtain up to 10 permits under this section per calendar year.

8. Location and participation fee. A certificate of approval holder issued a permit under this section may charge a fee for participation in a liquor judging competition event. The liquor judging competition event is not required to occur on premises licensed by the bureau.

9. Conditions. The following conditions apply to a liquor judging competition event permitted under this section.

A. If the venue for the liquor judging competition event is currently licensed for on-premises consumption of liquor, the bureau shall temporarily suspend the authority of the on-premises retail licensee to sell liquor for on-premises consumption in an area designated for the liquor judging competition event. The on-premises retail licensee may sell liquor for on-premises consumption outside the area designated for the liquor judging competition event.

B. The liquor judging competition event may not be open to the general public.

C. Only judges and stewards may taste liquor entered in a liquor judging competition event. For purposes of this paragraph, "steward" means liquor judging competition event staff that work with judges in conducting the liquor judging competition event.

D. Points of entry to the liquor judging competition event must be clearly marked and monitored to ensure consumption of liquor entered in the liquor judging competition event takes place only within the designated area of the liquor judging competition event.

E. A minor may not attend the liquor judging competition event.

F. A person who is visibly intoxicated may not be served.

G. Homemade spirits may not be entered into a liquor judging competition event.

H. Liquor may not be sold or offered for sale at a liquor judging competition event except as provided in paragraph A.

10. Rulemaking. The bureau may adopt routine technical rules as defined in Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter 2-A to administer this section.

Sec. 2. 28-A MRSA §1358 is enacted to read:

§1358. Unlicensed manufacture

A license for the manufacture of homemade liquor is not required under this Title if the conditions prescribed in this section are met. For purposes of this section, "homemade liquor" has the same meaning as in section 1057, subsection 1, paragraph A.

1. Permitted liquor judging competition events. Homemade liquor may be removed from the premises where the homemade liquor was made if the homemade liquor is entered into a permitted liquor judging competition event as provided in section 1057.

2. Prohibition on added spirits. Homemade liquor may not contain added spirits.

3. Prohibition on sale. Homemade liquor may not be sold or offered for sale.

4. Violation. A violation of this section is a Class E crime.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 316

H.P. 771 - L.D. 1166

An Act to Change the Professional Title and Identification of Physician Assistants to Physician Associates

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 32 MRSA §2594-E, as amended by PL 2023, c. 132, §3, is further amended to read:

§2594-E. Licensure of physician ~~assistants~~ associates

1. License required. A physician ~~assistant~~ associate may not render medical services until the physician ~~assistant~~ associate has applied for and obtained from either the Board of Osteopathic Licensure or the Board of Licensure in Medicine:

A. A license, which must be renewed biennially with the board that issued the initial license.

An application for licensure as a physician ~~assistant~~ associate must be submitted to either the Board of Osteopathic Licensure or the Board of Licensure in Medicine.

A license granted by either the Board of Osteopathic Licensure or the Board of Licensure in Medicine authorizes the physician ~~assistant~~ associate to render medical services.

2. Qualification for licensure. The board may issue to an individual a license to practice as a physician ~~assistant~~ associate under the following conditions:

A. A license may be issued to an individual who:

(1) ~~Graduated from a~~ Has successfully completed an educational program for physician assistant program approved by the board assistants or physician associates accredited by the Accreditation Review Commission on Education for the Physician Assistant or its successor organization or, prior to 2001, by the Committee on Allied Health Education and Accreditation or the Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs;

(2) Passed a physician assistant national certifying examination administered by the National Commission on Certification of Physician Assistants or its successor organization;

(3) Demonstrates current clinical competency;

(4) Does not have a license or certificate of registration that is the subject of disciplinary action such as probation, restriction, suspension, revocation or surrender;

(5) Completes an application approved by the board;

(6) Pays an application fee of up to \$300; and

(7) Passes an examination approved by the board; and

B. No grounds exist as set forth in section 2591-A to deny the application.

4. Delegation by physician ~~assistant~~ associate.

A physician ~~assistant~~ associate may delegate to the physician ~~assistant's~~ associate's employees or support staff or members of a health care team, including medical assistants, certain activities relating to medical care and treatment carried out by custom and usage when the activities are under the control of the physician ~~assistant~~ associate; the activities being delegated do not, unless otherwise provided by law, require a license, registration or certification to perform; the physician ~~assistant~~ associate ensures that the employees or support staff or members of a health care team have the appropriate training, education and experience to perform these delegated activities; and the physician ~~assistant~~ associate ensures that the employees or support staff perform these delegated activities competently and safely. The physician ~~assistant~~ associate who delegates an activity permitted under this subsection is legally liable for the activity performed by an employee, a medical assistant, support staff or a member of a health care team.